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[bookmark: _Hlk179887024]We received quite a few questions about applicant eligibility and participant requirements. While we cannot respond to each question in this document, we would like to share a helpful reminder for everyone considering this funding opportunity. To ensure your organization is a strong candidate, please review the SFP carefully and confirm that you meet the eligibility requirements and align well with the program’s goals.

Local Workforce Development Areas (Local Areas) or boards, adult/education and training providers, community colleges, private non-profit organizations, labor organizations, tribal organizations, faith-based organizations, public agencies (local governments), and community-based organizations (CBOs) are eligible to apply. For-profit businesses, including for-profit training or education providers, or Individuals are not eligible to apply, including current or previous subrecipients of all EDD’s WIOA grants.

Participants must be individuals in the selected target population(s) defined above in Section 1. 
E. Target Populations must be at least 18 years old and must meet all eligibility requirements outlined in WIOA Title I – Adult Program to participate in the ETPP PY 24-25 program.
For additional information, please reference page 5 of the SFP.

Could you please clarify if for-profit training providers are eligible to apply for the grant, or only non-profit training providers?

For-profit businesses, including for-profit training providers, are not eligible for this funding opportunity.
[bookmark: _Hlk214259227]For additional information, please reference page 5 of the SFP.

Is in school, but is not working, working in a low-wage occupation, or has a pattern of intermittent employment considered an OYA?

Yes, if they are between 18 and 28 years old.
[bookmark: _Hlk214259271]For additional information, please reference pages 4-5 of the SFP.

The solicitation defines a veteran but then states that they "may" belong to one or more of the following priority groups: campaign, disabled, recently separated, veterans with significant barriers, and other covered veterans. For this project, if they do not fall into one of these additional groups but meet the definition of a veteran, are they eligible?

Yes, veterans are eligible to apply if they meet the official definition. For more details and guidance, please see Workforce Services Directive 24-15.
For additional information, please reference page 5 of the SFP.

The solicitation cites demonstrating pathways to "quality jobs.” Are there any specific state standards for defining a quality job?

For the SFP, a "quality job" provides family-sustaining wages, health benefits, an adequate retirement savings plan, advancement opportunities, collective worker input, and is stable, predictable, safe, and free from discrimination. Detailed information relating to job quality can be found on the Aspen Institute's website.

Does a State University qualify as an adult/education and training provider under the sole applicant eligibility criteria?

Yes, colleges are welcome to apply for this grant. We encourage institutions of higher education to review the guidelines and apply if they meet the requirements.

Specifically, the notice of availability of funds for this program provides required email subject lines for the application and any submitted questions ("[Applicant's Three Digit Initialism] ETPP PY 24-25 Proposal" and "[Applicant's Initialism] ETPP PY 24-25 SFP Inquiry," respectively). To confirm, should those email subject lines be PY 25-26, not PY 24-25?

Yes, this is a typo, but due to the error, we will accept all inquiries and submissions with both ETPP PY 24-25 and PY 25-26 dates. An applicant's three-digit initialism refers to their assigned CalJOBS initialism. If the applicant does not have a CalJOBS code assigned, they may assign their own three-digit initialism.
For additional information, please reference pages 18-19 of the SFP.

Does an organization have to be already on the CA ETPL list?

To be considered a training provider partner, organizations must be listed on the CA ETPL.
For additional information, please reference page 8 of the SFP.

If an organization provides intensive case management, financial literacy, and housing stability services to justice-involved individuals, a key target population of ETPP, can the staff time and infrastructure dedicated to these supportive services be counted as a leveraged in-kind contribution toward the ETPP's 20% requirement, provided they support the same participants in their journey toward employment?

Leveraged resources can include non-cash or third-party in-kind contributions to share infrastructure costs. The definition of "in-kind resources" refers to contributions of non-cash resources explicitly used for project activities. Examples include but are not limited to donated personnel, services, and the use of equipment or space. See Appendix A for more information on adequately documenting pledge contribution agreements.
For additional information, please reference page 17 of the SFP.

The SFP encourages "blending, braiding, and sequencing." Could you provide an example of how braiding might look between WIOA ETPP funds and other state grants, such as an Adult Reentry Grant, particularly regarding the sharing of staff costs across grants for co-enrolled participants?

The term "leverage" is not defined in regulation or any related administrative requirements. For EDD-funded programs, the term refers to all resources the recipient uses to support grant activity and outcomes, regardless of whether those resources meet the matching standards. Applicants are encouraged to blend and leverage funds, utilize human capital effectively, and use other resources to maximize the project's success. Leveraged resources can come from various sources.
For additional information, please reference page 17 of the SFP.

For the required employer partnerships, what constitutes a sufficient "hiring commitment" or "letter of intent to employ"? Is a non-binding letter stating the employer's general intent to interview and consider qualified graduates sufficient, or is it a more formal commitment for a specific number of positions expected?

Both types of letters will meet the requirement if the commitments demonstrate current partnerships with specific regional employers, including advice on curriculum design, internships, and other work-based learning opportunities, as well as access to job openings and hiring opportunities that offer career mobility. 
[bookmark: _Hlk214263884]For additional information, please reference page 12 of the SFP.

The SFP emphasizes "cohort-based training." Given that justice-involved individuals may be released from incarceration at different times, would a "rolling cohort" model (where new participants enter a training cycle at defined intervals) be an acceptable strategy, or are simultaneous start and end dates for the entire group required?

A rolling cohort training model is acceptable. Partnering with community colleges, adult schools, and other education and training institutions to provide short-term training in a cohort model, targeting specific sectors and occupations that offer pathways to economic mobility. Training should include career readiness, technical, and literacy skills required for success in the target occupations.
For additional information, please reference page 12 of the SFP.

For participants who are stabilized through our existing supportive services (e.g., housing secured via organizational funds) but are not yet job-ready, can ETPP funds be used for preparatory services, such as career navigation and work readiness training, before they are officially enrolled in occupational training?

Yes, this would be case management, which can include supporting individuals while they participate in training to address issues with attendance, learning, skill development, behavior, and work readiness. For example, this may involve coordination with instructors and other programs, as well as referrals to public and private systems and services.
For additional information, please reference page 12 of the SFP.


The SFP encourages applicants to "exceed the state-negotiated performance goals." For new WIOA grantees serving populations with high barriers, is there a recognized ramp-up period in the first performance year, during which slightly lower outcomes are expected, provided a clear improvement plan is in place?

No. The performance goals apply to the entire period of performance. How and when the applicant plans to achieve the goals during the period of performance should consider any time needed for planning and implementation.

When reporting "hourly wages met or exceeded earnings compared to MIT's Living Wage," is the calculation based on the participant's primary residence (county) or the job location?

[bookmark: _Hlk214278035]Provide wage data for specific occupation(s) based on the MIT living wage standard. The project narrative explanation of performance goals must reflect a data-driven local/regional economic analysis that supports the proposed project performance goals concerning service delivery, target populations, and skill attainment.
For additional information, please reference page 16 of the SFP.

[bookmark: _Hlk213329913]Suppose a participant qualifies under one target population (e.g., Justice-Involved). Are we required to collect and verify eligibility documentation for other populations to which they may belong (e.g., OYA, ELL) for reporting purposes, or only for the primary population they serve?

Grantees should collect and verify eligibility for all populations they are eligible for.   

Are there specific income eligibility requirements for ETPP participants? 

Provide wage data for specific occupation(s) based on the MIT living wage standard.

Is there a required minimum number of employer partners that must be included in an application?  

No, but preferences will be given to proposals that include a full array of partnerships and demonstrate how the partnerships will effectively execute program phases, ensuring that all collaborations align with project goals. 
For additional information, please reference page 8 of the SFP.

In Section 6, the instructions specify that a budget summary and narrative must be attached. Should these be incorporated directly into the main narrative, or submitted as separate attachments? If included in the narrative, do they count toward the page limit?

Complete and attach the Budget Narrative (Exhibit F2), and the figures in Exhibit F2 Budget Summary must align with the Budget Summary (Exhibit F). Exhibits are separate attachments and do not count toward the 15-page limit. 

Specifically, the notice of availability of funds for this program provides required email subject lines for the application and any submitted questions ("[Applicant's Three Digit Initialism] ETPP PY 24-25 Proposal" and "[Applicant's Initialism] ETPP PY 24-25 SFP Inquiry," respectively). To confirm, should those email subject lines be 'PY 25-26', not 'PY 24-25'?

There is a typo in the submission example. It should be PY 25-2. Due to this error, we will accept all inquiries and submissions with both ETPP PY 24-25 and PY 25-26 dates.

Are applicants supposed to type the narrative inside the boxes in Exhibit A, where the bullet prompts are, or under the boxes? Can the page breaks, instructions, and blank lines be removed as well?

When completing Exhibit A, applicants may write their responses inside or under the boxes or remove the boxes entirely to create more space. The page breaks may also be deleted if needed. The instructions and any unnecessary spaces may also be removed. The section and subsection titles may be changed to a 12-point font, typed in single-spaced format, but they must remain in the document and remain in the same order (for evaluation purposes). 
[bookmark: _Hlk214286949]For additional information, please reference pages 29-36 of the SFP.

The solicitation SFP provides the maximum possible scores for each section and subsection. Will the department share the reader's scoring rubric?

 No, the scoring rubric will not be shared; only the points possible for each section will be provided.

On page 45 of the SFP, it states that Partnership Agreements and Commitment letters should be dated within the grant competition period between October 28, 2025, and December 8, 2025. It also states that MOUs and other similar instruments are acceptable to meet this requirement. Do the execution dates of these formal agreements have to fall within the grant application competition period from October 28, 2025, to December 8, 2025, as well?

No, the execution dates of pre-existing partnership agreements do not need to begin during the grant application competition period; however, the terms of the contract must cover the anticipated period of performance for the grant and the expected activities they will conduct in partnership with the grant.

[bookmark: _Hlk213328552]Can more than one organization's affiliate apply for and receive a grant under the ETTP grant opportunity? 

Unfortunately, we can only accept one lead application per organization; however, you can use the funds to serve participants in other offices throughout California.

What are the submission guidelines for the Notice of Intent (NOI)?

Submission of a Notice of Intent is not a requirement but is strongly recommended. These notices help us facilitate the administrative process and prevent funding delays. All Notices of Intent to Apply are due by November 20, 2025, at 12 noon. Please send your Notice of Intent to WSBSFP3@edd.ca.gov. Remember to include "Notice of Intent" in the subject line of your email and to include your organization's name in the body of the message.

[bookmark: _Hlk213329765]For those who win the award, how will payment be made? Will there be monthly payments for each enrollee based on expenses/reimbursements?

For awarded grantees under the WIOA 15% grant, payments will be made on a reimbursement basis. Grantees will be required to submit monthly and quarterly expenditure reports. Reimbursements will be based on allowable costs incurred during the reporting period, if they are supported by appropriate documentation.

[bookmark: _Hlk213329793]Appendix C Page 51 Cost Items Matrix. There is no heading for Program Management Billing; this is not simply administrative work, but also involves collecting, analyzing, generating, and ensuring the accuracy of the information entered CalJOBS Reporting. Similar work involves preparing monthly participant reports submitted to Cal Jobs. Where can we bill this time?

This should be included in the Staff Salaries section of the budget narrative, as a program cost.

There is a line item for Audit Services, as they are typically a contracted service; however, our Accounting Staff must handle audit prep. Do we allocate staff time for this under Audit Services as well? 

	No. All staff time should be accounted for in the staff line item, even if it is related to audit prep.

Could low-income people qualify as a special population if substantiated by public assistance benefit letters, pay stubs, tax returns, or, as a last resort, self-attestation?

As noted in the SFP on pages 4-5, Opportunity Young Adults aged 18 to 28 working in low-wage occupations are one of the target populations for this grant.

Can an organization serve one target population in year one and add a second target population in year two? For example, Year 1: Population x and Year 2: Population x + y.

Yes, please be sure to describe in your project narrative how you plan to serve each target population.

[bookmark: _Hlk213329533]The application references both a maximum 10% administrative cost in the grant amount and allows Indirect Costs in the Budget Narrative/Summary. Can you clarify whether applicants can claim both in their submitted budgets?  

Administrative and indirect costs are not the same. The 10 percent cap applies to all administrative costs, whether direct or indirect. The 10 percent cap does not apply to any portion of indirect costs that are programmatic costs. An indirect cost rate of more than 10 percent may be charged, provided the dollar amount of the administrative portion of indirect costs plus any direct administrative costs remain under 10 percent. Please note that indirect cost rates are not calculated as a percentage of the total award but rather as a percentage of the base identified in your Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) or Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) or for those claiming the 15 percent de minimis rate, as a percentage of Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC) as defined in 2 CFR 200.68.

[bookmark: _Hlk213329506]How many quarterly meetings and how many Communities of Practice meetings, and in what locations, should applicants budget for?

Locations are to be determined at this time. Applicants should plan for monthly virtual COPs and at least four in-person meetings throughout the POP.

Should the narrative be single-spaced? If no, what line spacing is required for the narrative?

The Project Narrative can be written in single-spaced format.

[bookmark: _Hlk213329594]In section V.2 of the narrative, an organizational chart is requested. Our organization has over 200 staff, and the organizational chart alone is over 15 pages. Is the organizational chart excluded from the 15-page limit for the narrative?

The organization chart should include a list of key positions and their descriptions. Yes, this list is a part of the 15-page limit for the Project Narrative.

Is providing ASL interpretation accommodation an allowable cost under this grant?

Yes. Grant funds can be used to provide ASL interpretation services needed to assist participants in accessing grant services. Grant funds may not be used to provide services or subsidize costs otherwise required of employers by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). The ADA requires that employers provide reasonable accommodation for the purpose of applying, interviewing, onboarding, and performing a job once hired. Grantees who choose to assist employers in offsetting the cost of such accommodations must not bill the grant for these services.

It says 18-24 months with a projected start date of April 1st. Why a range in months? This means it will be 2 years, depending on when it starts. Does the amount we request need to cover the entire 18-24 months? 

Funding cannot be used beyond March 31, 2028, due to its term. The actual number of months for the grant period of performance depends on the official start date, which will occur as soon as possible after the procurement is completed and the grant agreements are executed.


Is this a fully funded program with no Fee for Services?

Yes. This grant will be funded as a subaward. It is not a fee-for-service contract.

Section K, "Required Employer Partners," on SFP page 7 states, "applicants must demonstrate strong, sustainable partnerships with employers in the target industry." If the applicant is an employment agency, are we required to include other employer partners?

If the applicant is an employment agency, it is not an employer; therefore, it would still need to demonstrate strong, sustained partnerships with employers in the target industry sectors and occupations.

SFP page 10 states, "Project should incorporate credit for prior learning and articulated pathways that reduce time to employment and accelerate credential attainment." Are the proposed cohort and work-based learning training programs required to conclude in a certification of some kind?

The referenced section is listed under Strengthen Education-to-Employment Pathways, which notes, "to create seamless transitions into employment. Projects should incorporate credit for prior learning (CPL)... that reduce time to employment and accelerate credential attainment. In addition, the projects should include the following: Support Stackable Credentials and Career Mobility." Under that heading, it notes that "Emphasis should be placed on portable skills, certifications, and career ladders that lead to economic mobility and advancement." Therefore, yes, as required on Exhibit K, a percentage of participants are expected to be enrolled in certified training and work-based learning and scheduled for completion of certification. 

SFP page 9, Project Outcomes states "outcomes are demonstrated by placement into jobs that meet MIT Local Living Wage Standards or jobs with clear and accessible pathways to living wage jobs." Can applicants include multiple training pathways in our program design?

The sentence just before the referenced section states, "The project design should support specific and measurable outcomes that increase access to quality jobs." Therefore, having multiple training pathways in program design would be acceptable if they support specific, measurable outcomes that increase access to quality jobs.

SFP page 4 Target Population states, "ETPP will fund projects that serve the target population(s) with barriers to employment. Can applicants include pathways for existing staff in addition to new or to-be-hired participants?

EDD would need more information about the proposed program design to provide an appropriate response to its allowability. This grant is intended to serve participants, not the staff of the applicant organization. Applicants are also responsible for avoiding potential conflicts of interest. However, there are some exceptions, including when an employee is also a participant in the case of Employment Social Enterprise organizations. Staff development training and activities may also be allowed if they serve the purpose of better serving participants. If funded, applicants will be required to remove any unallowable activities from their project narratives before execution of the grant agreement.

SFP page 2, purpose states applicants must have "the resources, experience, and ability to implement projects that advance workforce strategies…" Can applicants use these funds to complete the process to become a Registered Apprenticeship Program?

The referenced section states, "The purpose of the ETPP PY 25-26 SFP is to solicit grant proposals from project operators with the resources, experience, and ability to implement projects." Therefore, applicants must already have the resources, experience, and ability to implement their project before applying for this grant.

SFP page 11 lists "Support services" as an example of an intervention that may be included as a component in the application and the program design. Examples of support services include childcare assistance, transportation subsidies, mental health counseling, and several others. Does this mean that proposers may, as an intervention, ensure that participants have access to these support services?

The referenced section under Key Strategies notes that Support services are an example of an intervention that is "essential for the target populations" and that they "should (not may) be included as a component in the application and the program design." 

The solicitation for proposals states that "Applicants may choose to serve other special populations. However, they must justify and provide supporting evidence to clearly and convincingly demonstrate that the population is disproportionately underserved and underemployed in their community, outside of the data requirements listed in Section 1. H., are there more details that you can provide on how applicants would support an additional special population, and what is necessary to include in an application that lists other target populations?

Refer to Section 1. H. of the SFP to guidance on supporting other populations with data and supporting evidence. 

How closely should applicants' performance metric requirements align with the state's negotiated performance goals? Are applicants able to propose metrics more specific to the program?

Applicants can use the state's negotiated performance goals, metrics, and achievement rates as a point of reference when reviewing the local goals. The state recognizes that local goals may differ from those presented, and applicants can provide more specific goals for their program. 
[bookmark: _Hlk213745827]
Are there specific targeted sectors and job roles an organization must focus on for programming activities, and where can they access the list of targeted industry sectors and job roles?

Applicants must demonstrate how the selected industry sectors provide accessible, quality jobs 
for the target populations, with clear pathways to career advancement and economic mobility. 
These sectors should offer entry-level opportunities that lead to sustainable employment and 
wages that support family self-sufficiency. There is no list to reference.

Can an organization introduce job roles that are in demand but may not be listed in any of the industry sectors EDD has identified?

Proposals should clearly describe how the chosen sectors align with regional labor market demand and provide meaningful opportunities for individuals facing systemic barriers to employment. Applicants must demonstrate how the selected industry sectors offer accessible, quality jobs for the target populations, with clear pathways to career advancement and economic mobility. Applicants should support their sector selection with relevant labor market data and evidence of job availability, wage potential, and advancement opportunities.

Does an organization have to use the recommended partners (e.g., Title I Local Area, Title III Wagner-Peyser local office, Title III Wagner-Peyser Local EDD Jobs for Veterans State Grant (JVSG) staff, etc.) if they intend to introduce new customized, cohort, and on-the-job training that is industry-specific apprenticeship programs to support employers in the non-profit sector?

All applicants are encouraged to work with the following partners, regardless of the target population(s).

Is any procurement required before submitting a proposal if using subcontractors?

Procurement is not required for subrecipients that are awarded funds for the purpose of carrying out a portion of the federal award. When sub awarding funds, the grantee takes on all requirements for pass-through entities as outlined in 2 CFR 200.332.

A contract intended to obtain goods and services for the grantee's or subrecipient's use establishes a procurement relationship with a contractor. Procurement is required for all contractors for goods and services, even if they are included in the grant application. All contractors and subrecipients must be clearly identified in the applicant's budget, based on an appropriate determination of whether a contractor-subrecipient relationship exists. Keep in mind that the substance of the relationship is more important than the form of the agreement when making this determination. 

Contracts for goods and services that require procurement are not required to be completed before the application. The applicant can indicate in the application that the provider will be determined after procurement. If they were identifying contractors in the proposal, they would have had to be already procured. Subrecipients that are not required to be procured can be identified in the application.

For more information on subrecipient/contractor distinctions, refer to WSD 18-06 Subrecipient and Contractor Distinctions, and for more information on procurement for goods and services, see WSD 17-08 Procurement of Equipment and Related Services.


Is one cohort of 22 months with a two-month planning period acceptable, or are you expected to have multiple cohorts in the 18–24-month grant period?

	Specific program designs are up to the applicant, unless elements are explicitly stated/required by the solicitation for proposals. Applicants should demonstrate in their applications that their proposed program design will meet the requirements of the SFP and will achieve the required performance outcomes outlined in the SFP.

Attachment 2 states, "The text, bullets, and boxes under each section and subsection may be deleted to make more space for the narrative. " Will our proposal be disqualified if we use bullets or otherwise change the formatting integrated into Attachment 2?

Applicants may delete or retain the bullet points and boxes in Exhibit A. Deleting the bullet points allows for more room to fit content within the 15-page limit. Please make sure to keep all the headings and subheadings in place.

For the "Median Earnings 2nd Quarter After Exit" in the Performance Goals Matrix, should individuals who are not employed after exit be included in that calculation?

Participants who exit and are not employed in the second quarter after exit will not be counted in this performance indicator. For additional details on performance guidelines, please see Workforce Services Directive 24-07.

Can a fiscally sponsored project apply for funding under its fiscal agent's name?

The lead applicant should submit their application using their legal name, ensuring it matches all tax and System of Award Management (SAM) records.

Does an applicant need to be registered with Sam.gov, given that the UEI number is requested in the cover letter but not mentioned as a requirement in the SFP?

Applicants must register with the System for Award Management (SAM) to apply for and receive funding for this initiative.
Please see page 15 of the SFP for information on registering with SAM.

If partnering with the local Workforce Connections site, can their staff salaries be used as leverage for intake, testing, and additional case management? We would include technology in the budget for computers to support the specified activities. 

Leveraged resources are all resources used to support grant activities and grant outcomes, whether they meet the standards required for allowable match. Leveraged resources may include both federal and/or non-federal funds. It is the applicant's responsibility to confirm that the other source of funding can be used as leverage.

Noting that the documents have been formatted in compliance with ADA requirements and providing feedback that Apple/Mac users without Microsoft Office are not able to keep the formatting for all documents. Please confirm if Exhibit F – Budget Summary, Exhibit G – Supplemental Budget (if applicable), Exhibit J – Partner Roles and Responsibilities, and Exhibit K- Performance Goals Matrix (DOCX) are supposed to be responsive to inputs and automatically calculate, or if this is just a placeholder for applicants to input that specific information.

It is acceptable to enter the data and calculate it manually if the formula does not work.

Could you please provide clarification regarding administrative costs? For example, on page 57, 2C of the SFP, it states that the Costs of goods and services required for the program's administrative functions include rental or purchase of equipment, utilities, office supplies, postage, and the rental and maintenance of office space. Does this mean that space and utilities occupied/benefited direct program staff, along with other costs incurred by direct staff, including office supplies, postage, communication, etc., be classified as administrative costs? 

Infrastructure costs can be either administrative or programmatic, depending on which functions they support. Costs for goods and services that support programmatic functions should be classified as programmatic costs. Costs for goods and services that support administrative functions should be classified as administrative costs. For example, rental costs for publicly accessible office space where direct services are provided to participants are program costs. In contrast, rental costs for office space used by staff who complete accounting, budgeting, financial, and cash management functions are considered administrative costs.

Exhibit F2 states: J. Indirect Costs $ states, De Minimis (10% of Modified Total Direct Costs). Should this state 15%?    

Yes, this is a typo, as stated in the SFP, recipients and subrecipients that do not have a current Federal negotiated indirect cost rate (including provisional rate) may elect to charge a minimis rate of up to 15 percent of modified total direct costs (MTDC). The recipient or subrecipient is authorized to determine the appropriate rate up to this limit. Check only if you do not receive more than $35 million annually in direct federal funds, and you do not have a currently approved ICRA.

What is the difference between administrative costs and indirect costs?  

[bookmark: _Hlk214009351]Applicants may claim both administrative and indirect costs. Allowable administration costs are outlined in Appendices C and D of the SFP. The combined total of direct and indirect administrative costs cannot exceed 10% of the total award. For more classification of costs, reference 2 CFR 200.412, for Direct costs 2 CFR 200.413, and for Indirect Costs 2 CFR 200.414. of the SFP.

Can you confirm the project’s end date? The RFA stipulates an 18–24-month program period beginning on 04/04/2026, but does not include a final expenditure date - do we assume this is 03/31/2028?

The project’s end date is 3/31/2028, regardless of the start date, due to the funding's life.

Can we apply as the lead (we are a community college) and be a partner through our local Adult Education partner (they will be the lead)? 

Only one proposal will be accepted from each applicant. However, an applicant may be a partner in another application.

Is entry into post-secondary education considered a positive exit for an ETPP participant/training completer?

Refer to WIOA Performance Guidance Workforce Services Directive 24-07. 



Can a mortgage be included as an in-kind contribution or as part of the project budget?

Yes, if it does not exceed fair market value and is assessed and adequately documented.
Refer to CFR 200.306 for more information on Cost Sharing.

What is the difference between operating and indirect costs for large institutions? 

Operating costs can be billed either directly or indirectly, or a combination of both, depending on an organization's own cost allocation methodology. Both options are available on EDD's application documents. Applicants should complete the documents based on how their operating costs are classified within their organization.

Do students funded by this grant have to fulfill special WIOA/low-income requirements?

Participants must meet all eligibility requirements outlined in WIOA Title I – Adult Program. More eligibility information can be found in the WIOA Title I Eligibility Technical Assistance Guide (WSD24-04).

Can organizations use their NICRA (even if it is up to 30%), or are we required to use the 10% indirect referenced solicitation budget exhibits? 

Administrative and indirect costs are not the same. The 10 percent cap applies to all administrative costs, whether direct or indirect. The 10 percent cap does not apply to any portion of indirect costs that are programmatic costs. An indirect cost rate of more than 10 percent can be charged if the dollar amount of the administrative portion of indirect costs plus any direct administrative costs remain under 10 percent. Please note that indirect cost rates are not calculated as a percentage of the total award but rather as a percentage of the base identified in your Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) or Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) or for those claiming the 15 percent de minimis rate, as a percentage of Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC) as defined in 2 CFR 200.68.  

The definition of cost share, or "leverage," funding in the SFP states that "For EDD-funded programs, the term [leverage] refers to all resources the recipient uses to support grant activity and outcomes, regardless of whether those resources meet the standards required for matching." Can you share more about which funds qualify as a match under the program?

	Leveraged resources are all resources used to support grant activities and grant outcomes, whether they meet the standards required for allowable match. Leveraged resources may include both federal and/or non-federal funds. It is the applicant's responsibility to confirm that the other source of funding can be used as leverage. 

For the 20% leveraged resources, can previously awarded grant funds, such as the Catalyst Predevelopment grant, count as leveraged resources for ETPP if those funds support related but non-duplicative activities? And if so, how should that leverage be documented in the proposal?

Yes, however, it is the applicant's responsibility to confirm that the other source of funding can be used as leverage. Leverage amount(s) should be included in Exhibit F: Budget Summary. All leveraged funds will be subject to the reporting requirements contained in Workforce Services Directive WSD 19-05.

Is the grant a reimbursement grant?

Yes, this grant is considered a reimbursable grant. For more details, please refer to the WIOA 15 Percent Governor’s Discretionary Funds Workforce Directive 23-04.

If an applicant selects Opportunity Young Adults as the primary population for the grant, but the narrative explains that, within the definition of OYA, we also intend to serve English language learners, justice-involved individuals, and veterans, do we still need to select all these populations on the application?

Applicants should identify all the target populations they intend to serve with these grant funds. In the Project Narrative, please describe in detail how your organization will support each of these populations.

Are undocumented immigrants eligible?

Participants must meet WIOA Adult eligibility requirements for participation in this grant.

	Grantees may deliver many services without proof of the participant's work authorization, including, but not limited to, the following:
· Labor exchange services include labor market information, career exploration, career guidance, resume writing assistance, and job search assistance.
· Information on worker rights and where to find legal assistance.
· Referrals to community resources such as transportation, childcare support, food assistance, housing assistance, medical assistance, and other similar resources.
· Individualized services such as career assessments, development of an individual employment plan, group counseling, one-on-one case management, career planning, information on foreign credential evaluation services, and assistance in obtaining credit for prior learning.
· Basic skills education, including English language instruction, and high school equivalency.
· Assistance in completing paperwork to finalize work authorization.
· Assistance in applying for an occupational license, including the cost of such applications.

However, WIOA funds may not be used to provide certain supportive services that represent a direct financial benefit, post-secondary education and training, and work-based learning such as on-the-job training and incumbent worker training to a participant until they can show that they have been granted asylum, been granted refugee status, or are otherwise included in the Title IV of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) definition of "qualified" individual. 
Please review TEGL 10-23, Reducing Administrative Barriers to Improve Customer Experience in Grant Programs Administered by the Employment and Training Administration (dol.gov), for more information.

Are we able to select more than one sector/job on the application? For example, we have three career programs that meet this target group and would use the funds across all three. Or do we need to submit multiple applications, one for each pathway?

One application per organization with multiple career programs is acceptable.

When detailed population data is lacking for our target group (refugee families in the Central Valley), to what extent can we use our internal, experiential knowledge to define their exact needs as an alternative to data (specifically for Exhibit A)?

An applicant can use any information that they have available to them, including, but not limited to, existing data sources, information provided by partner organizations serving the target population, news articles, internal data on the number of individuals from the target population accessing their services, or whatever is the best information they have available.  

Page 12 of the SFP mentions the key strategy of occupational skills training. Can ETPP funds be used to pay for cohort training when the school/program is neither on the ETPL nor BPPE approved?

Training funded by WIOA must be on the CA ETPL.

Can adult schools apply as a consortium?

An adult school could apply as a lead applicant and have multiple partners. 

Can an applicant partner with for-profit partners and contract out for services?

Yes, an applicant can partner with for-profit partners. 

For organizations applying for ETPP funding, does ETPP allow contracted training providers or curriculum consultants, or does all training delivery need to be in-house?

Refer to the Eligible Training Provider List Workforce Services Directive 21-03. 

For the 20% leveraged funds, can we leverage training costs with other WIOA/ regional grant funds? Are there any preferred areas for leverage with the funds?

Yes, it is allowed to leverage training costs. Leveraged resources are all resources used to support grant activities and grant outcomes, whether they meet the standards required for allowable match. Leveraged resources may include both federal and/or non-federal funds. No specific preferred leverage areas are identified in the SFP.



Does the cost per participant calculation incorporate case management, supportive service, and OJT or work experience costs?

	Yes, the cost per participant should include all relevant costs. To calculate the cost per participant, divide the total requested grant award by the number of planned participants.

Our organization operates a Social Enterprise that provides paid training on-the-job. Can our own org be our employment partner?

An organization that operates a Social Enterprise providing paid on‑the‑job training may serve as its own employment partner, if it meets all applicable requirements outlined in the SFP.

If an ETPP program provides services in one geographic region (ex, LA County), must all program participants also live in that geographic region?

Applicants can serve participants in any of the regions and/or counties within the state if the 
need for services is supported by regional labor market data and outlined in the proposal.

Can you provide more information regarding eligible matching funds? If our organization currently has an EDD grant award, would that be an eligible match?

This grant does not require matching funds. Leveraged resources are all resources used to support grant activities and grant outcomes, whether they meet the necessary standards for allowable match. Leveraged resources may include both federal and/or non-federal funds. EDD-funded programs may be used as leverage, if allowed by the funding source. 

Can funding be used to help incumbent staff advance in their careers rather than bringing in additional staff/apprentices? What are reporting requirements?

EDD would need more information about the proposed program design to provide an appropriate response regarding its allowability. This grant is intended to serve participants, not the staff of the applicant organization. Applicants are also responsible for avoiding potential conflicts of interest. However, there are some exceptions, including when an employee is also a participant in the case of Employment Social Enterprise organizations. Staff development training and activities may also be allowed if they serve the purpose of better serving participants. If funded, applicants will be required to remove any unallowable activities from their project narratives before execution of the grant agreement.

If an organization were awarded $2 million, would they reach the threshold for a single audit (if no other grants were awarded to the org)?

Any non-federal entity — including non-profits, universities, and local governments — that expend $1 million or more in federal awards during a fiscal year, must undergo a Single Audit. 
Refer to Audits Requirements (WSD20-03) (October 13, 2020) for more information.

Does the required 20% leverage of the total grant funding request need to come solely from the intermediary organization, or should it also include contributions from subgrantee partners collaborating with the intermediary on the project?

Applicants must demonstrate the ability to leverage resources from other sources to support 
the goals and objectives of this grant. Applicants must have leveraged resources equivalent to
20 percent of the grant award amount.

Do you know if they have a match list for partners interested in joining a coalition to apply for?

	No, the EDD does not have a list of organizations interested in joining a coalition to apply. 

If allowed, what does ETPP prioritize when evaluating partnerships between lead applicants and subcontractors or consultants? 500,000 the minimum? Can less be requested?

The minimum funding request is $500,000. Applications requesting less will not be considered.

An org chart is not listed as a required attachment, but it was included in the slide you presented. Is an org chart required?

An organization chart is required in Exhibit A: Project Narrative as an attachment.

Should all exhibits and attachments be combined into one document and submitted together, or should they be submitted as separate documents?

Required documents should be submitted separately. Applications that do not include all the required documents listed and/or are submitted after 3 p.m. PT on December 8, 2025, will be deemed non-responsive and automatically disqualified from consideration for funding. For more information, see section 5. Submission in the SFP.

Are we allowed more than 20% leveraged funding? Will that affect the applications selected?

Yes. Applicants may include more than 20% leveraged funding in their proposals. Doing so will not negatively affect application reviews or selection.

The Budget Summary form and the totals are not updating on all lines when we update fields, including the total amount. Can someone look at this and check the forms?

The formulas in the budget documents are provided as a guide only and can fail when the documents are downloaded. Applicants should ensure they double-check the amounts in their submissions for accuracy.



The SFP mentioned that EDD drew best practices and lessons learned from prior rounds serving these populations. Are those TA reports publicly accessible? I want to read those! 

Yes, the final evaluation report for the Equity and Special Populations Fund (ETPF) can be found here: https://www.jff.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/03/ETPFTA_Report.pdf.

Could the funding also be used to serve individuals who are homeless, even if they are not veterans, ELLs, justice-involved, or opportunity youth?

Applicants may choose to serve other special populations. However, they must justify and provide supporting evidence to clearly and convincingly demonstrate that the population is disproportionately underserved and underemployed in their community. In addition to the data requirements listed in Section 1. H. Data and Supporting Evidence.

My organization chart won't fit on a single-page PDF without being too small to read. Is it okay if I submit a multiple-page PDF for the organizational chart?

Yes, a high-level organization chart for the entire organization and a more detailed one for the relevant department are acceptable in a PDF format.

If an eligible applicant serves multiple counties, can they submit a single ETPP application that includes different training pathways for distinct priority populations across those counties? Or must the project plan remain consistent throughout the entire application for the whole region?

Applicants can describe the project plan for the different training pathways in the project narrative.

Can you define what a partner is? And how many are required?

There is no set number of partners, but preferences will be given to proposals that include a full array of partnerships and demonstrate how the partnerships will effectively execute program phases, ensuring that all collaborations align with project goals.
       For additional information about partners, please refer to pages 6-8 of the SFP.

Can we also submit letters of support? Or would those not be considered at all?

Letters of support are not required and will not be considered. However, a partnership agreement is needed for each partner listed in your proposal, and a commitment letter is required for any cash or in-kind contributions. Even if the primary applicant is the contributor, they still need to include a commitment letter. Verify the dollar amount and ensure it matches the other exhibits.

Can a partner submit a single letter as both a Partnership Letter and a Commitment Letter if they are filling both roles, or would they have to submit two letters?

Applicants must submit partnership agreement letters from any proposed partners. Any partner providing the whole or part of the leveraged resources to the program must also provide a commitment letter stating the amount of the in-kind contribution being leveraged for the project. So, yes, you can combine the two letters from one entity and provide both.
See Appendix A of the SFP for more information on submitting partnership agreements and commitment letters.

Can an applicant org write its own commitment letter if it is offering cash or in-kind support for the proposed project?

If the applicant is a partner and/or provides the required leveraged resources, they must provide a letter documenting their commitment. 
See Appendix A for more information on submitting partnership agreements and commitment letters.

Please provide a location where we can view past awardees.

Lists of previous grant awardees are available on the EDD's SFP website.

Would there be any advantage to submitting a proposal for a statewide program?

Statewide or regionally, the funds will support projects that can leverage other resources to maximize impact, achieve the maximum return on investment, and foster replication and sustainability.

The proposal can be submitted in a zip format. Could it also be sent via a Dropbox link, for example?

Applicants must submit their proposal package via email as a compressed (or "Zipped") file to WSBSFP3@edd.ca.gov.

How is reporting done? Is it the same as CAEP, using TopsPro and NOVA?

All subrecipients must have access to the CalJOBS website to report expenditures, participant information, and outcome data to the state in a timely and accurate manner. Refer to Appendix F: CalJOBS Workstation and Software Requirements for more details. The state will provide training on using the CalJOBS reporting system. 

[bookmark: _Hlk185252903][bookmark: _Hlk185252956]Review Types of Work-Based Learning WIOA Desk References and CalJOBSSM Activity Codes (WSD24-05) (October 10, 2024) for guidance on entering grant activity codes. See CalJOBSSM Participant Reporting (WSD20-10) (April 8, 2021), for more information regarding participant reporting requirements.

Could you please elaborate on the weight of each aspect of your scoring rubric, beyond the numerical values? 

A detailed breakdown of the scoring rubric is contained within Exhibit A: Project Narrative, and in Appendix A of the SFP.

Can we write in staff travel costs for the in-person COPs in our budget forms to cover travel costs if we are awarded?

Yes, travel costs are allowable; however, an entity that receives funds under Title I of the WIOA must comply with the OMB Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200 and U.S. DOL exceptions 2 CFR Part 2900.
For additional information, please refer to Appendix C: Allowable Costs and Cost Items Matrix, Figure C.2: Cost Items Matrix.
 
On page 42 of the SFP, it states: " Identify the number of participants: This is the total number of participants served during the year by the program." However, the grant period is 18-24 months. Should we use the total number served over the entire period or just the number served in the past year?

	The estimated number of participants served should extend through the life of the grant.

Our non-profit operates an Early Education Apprenticeship Program. Our organization provides on-the-job training at our early education centers. Do we need to collaborate with an external organization to provide job opportunities?

	EDD would need more information about the proposed program design to provide an appropriate response.

Two different programs at one community college, can only one program apply for the grant? Example: Can the veterans’ program and the justice-impacted program both apply?

The community college could apply as the lead applicant and design the two programs for the funding.

If we include ITA funds in our budget, do the education providers have to be on the ETPL?

	Yes. This grant is funded with WIOA funds, and all WIOA requirements apply.

If partnerships are part of the program design but not included in the proposal's expense budget, are they required to be named as partners in the proposal, and would a partnership letter be required?

Applicants must submit partnership agreement letters from any proposed partners. Any partner providing the whole or part of the leveraged resources to the program must also provide a commitment letter stating the amount of the in-kind contribution being leveraged for the project.
See Appendix A of the SFP for more information on submitting partnership agreements and commitment letters.



If an organization currently receives WIOA funds through the CWDB's Workforce Accelerator 13 (WAF 13) grant. If awarded ETPP, would they be able to concurrently operate both ETPP and WAF 13 for separate and distinct services in our Reentry Program? 

Yes, blending, braiding, and leveraging funds are recommended.

On page 17 of the SFP, it is stated that the cost per participant should be "reasonable and necessary," with the average price per participant varying. Does the EDD have an average range of a "reasonable and necessary" cost per participant? 

No. However, applicants may justify the cost within their Project Narrative.

On page 46 of the SFP, it is stated that "formal partnership letters will score higher." What is the difference between a regular partnership letter vs. a "formal" partnership letter? 

Sorry for the confusion in the SFP language. There is no difference between a “formal” letter and a “regular” letter, all partnership letters are required for any partners you list in the proposal. Preferences or higher scores in the evaluation will be awarded to applicants with multiple partners because greater partnerships create a stronger project.

On page 54 of the SFP, it is stated that participant support costs are Allowable with Prior Approval. Suppose that Reentry Program participants are also employed full-time as W-2 workers during their time in our program. In that case, could we use ETPP funds to cover participant wages? If so, how would we obtain prior approval?

EDD would need more information about the proposed program design to provide an appropriate response to its allowability. If funded, applicants will be required to remove any unallowable activities from their project narratives before execution of the grant agreement.

115. Would ETPP funds be allowable for costs associated with leasing and operating the space, including rent and utilities, if the space is used exclusively for training, apprenticeship, and job-readiness activities for participants?

Yes, costs related to leasing and operating can be included in the grant proposal. If funded, applicants will be required to remove any unallowable activities from their project narratives before execution of the grant agreement.

Are applicants permitted to enter into a lease agreement that extends beyond the 24-month grant period, provided that ETPP funds are used only for allowable costs incurred within the active funding window?

All charges to the grant must be for costs incurred during the grant period. The EDD is not responsible for any costs before the start of the grant or past 03/31/2028.

 If not, would it be allowable to "pre-pay" lease costs for the full two-year term in advance, if all expenditures are made before the expiration of the ETPP funding window and the space is used exclusively for eligible activities during the grant period?

No. Grant funds cannot be used to pre-pay costs. All charges to the grant must be for expenses incurred during the grant period and must support activities that occur during that period.

Suppose an organization is applying as a DAS-registered culinary apprenticeship program for justice-involved and opportunity youth populations. Are the following Chef instructor salaries for delivering job readiness training (hands-on kitchen instruction) and transitional employment wages to apprentices working through our meal services employment social enterprise allowable expenses?

EDD would need more information about the proposed program design to provide an appropriate response regarding its allowability. If funded, applicants will be required to remove any unallowable activities from their project narratives before execution of the grant agreement.

119. May individuals who complete career-readiness training before the grant period be funded for services received during KFG's on-the-job training? Or do funded participants have to be enrolled from the very beginning of their career journey?

Individuals can be enrolled in this grant for additional services, even if they have previously received services from another grant or funding source.

Suppose an organization's negotiated indirect cost rate for this type of project would usually be 42.5%. Since administrative costs are limited to 10% for this program, could they be counted as our contribution of leveraged resources (42.5% - 10% = 32.5%)?

The 10 percent administrative costs apply to all administrative costs, whether direct or indirect. An indirect cost rate of more than 10 percent can be charged if the dollar amount of the administrative portion of indirect costs plus any direct administrative costs remain under 10 percent. Please note that indirect cost rates are not calculated as a percentage of the total award but rather as a percentage of the base identified in your Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) or Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) or for those claiming the 15 percent de minimis rate, as a percentage of Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC) as defined in 2 CFR 200.68. Leveraged costs can be applied to any line item when another funding source covers costs that benefit the grant, including indirect costs.
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